


From: Don Sampson 
Sent: Thursday, September 21, 2017 
Subject: State of Oregon - Tribal Consultation Policy Senate Bill 770 
 
Please find attached Oregon States Tribal Consultation Policy via Senate Bill 770 and associated 
administrative rule. It is important a government to government consultation occurs between the 9 
Oregon Tribes and the State regarding the Clean Energy Jobs legislation. Tribes are sovereign 
governments and not stakeholders. Any legislation will have a direct impact on their sovereign rights 
and authorities. Also find attached the Umatilla Tribes Policy on government to government 
consultation. Please feel free to contact me with any questions regarding these policies. Also the 
Legislative Commission on Indian Services works directly with the 9 Oregon Tribes. Thank you, Don 
Sampson – ATNI Climate Change Project Director 
 









                                    STATE ADMINISTRATIVE AGENCIES                                   182.162 

RELATIONSHIP OF STATE AGENCIES
WITH INDIAN TRIBES

182.162 Definitions for ORS 182.162 to
182.l68.  As used in ORS 182.162 to 182.168

(1) “State agency” has the meaning given
that term in Oregon ORS 358.635.

(2) “Tribe” means a federally recognized
Indian tribe in Oregon [2001 c. 177 §]

Note: 182.162 to 182.168 were enacted into law by the
Legislative Assembly but were not added to or  made a part of
ORS chapter 182 or any series therein by legislative action.  See
preface Oregon Revised Statutes for further explanation.

182.64 State agencies to develop and
implement policy on relationship with tribes;
cooperation with tribes. (1) A state agency shall
develop and implement a policy that:

(a)  Identifies individuals in the state agency
who are responsible for developing and
implementing programs of the state agency that affect
tribes.

(b)  Establishes a process to identify the
programs of the state agency that affect tribes.

(c)   Promotes communication between the
state agency and tribes.

(d)  Promotes positive government-to-
government relations between the state and tribes.

(e)  Establishes a method for notifying
employees of the state agency of the provisions of
ORS 182.162 to 182.168 and the policy the state
agency adopts under this section.

(2)  In the process of identifying and
developing the programs of the state agency that
affect tribes, a state agency shall include
representatives designated by the tribes.

(3)  A state agency shall make a reasonable
effort to cooperate with tribes in the development and
implementation of programs of the state agency that
affect tribes, including the use of agreements
authorized by ORS 190.110 [2001c.177 §2]

Note: See note under 182.162

182.166 Training of state agency managers and
employees who communicate with tribes; annual
meetings of representative of agencies and tribes;
annual reports by state agencies.  (1) at least once a
year, the Oregon Department of Administrative
Services, in consultation with the Commission on
Indian Services, shall provide training to state agency
managers and employees who have regular
communication with tribes on the legal status of
tribes, the legal rights of members of tribes and issues
of concern to tribes.

(2)  Once a year, the Governor shall convene
a meeting at which representatives of state agencies
and tribes may work together to achieve mutual
goals.

(3)  No later than December 15 of every
year, a state agency shall submit a report to the
Governor and the Commission on Indian Services on
the activities of the state agency under ORS 182.162
to 182.168.  The report shall include:

(a)  The policy the state agency adopted
under ORS 182.164.

(b)  The names of the individuals in the state
agency who are responsible for developing and
implementing programs of the state agency that affect
tribes.

(c)  The process the state agency established
to identify the programs of the state agency that
affect tribes.

(d)  The effort of the state agency to
promote communication between the state agency
and the tribes and government-to-government
relations between the state and tribes.

(e)  A description of the training required
subsection (1) of this section.

(f)  The method the state agency established
for notifying employees of the state agency of the
provisions of ORS 182.162 to 182.168 and the policy
the state agency adopts under ORS 182.164.  [2001 c.
177 §3]

Note: See note under 182.162.
182.168 No right of action created by ORS 182.162
to 182.168.  Nothing in ORS 182.162 to 182.168
creates a right of action against a state agency or a
right of review of an action of a state agency.  [2001c.
177 §4]

Note: See note under 182.162
` 182.170 [1959 c.501 §7; repealed by 1959 c.501 §10]

182.180 [1959 c.501 §8; repealed by 1959 c.501 §10]
182.190 [1959 c.501 §9; repealed by 1959 c.501 §10]
182.200 [1959 c.501 §10. Repealed by 1959 c.601 §10]
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Hello Ms. Hernandez, 
 
I have been following the development of the Cap and Invest/ Oregon Clean Energy 
Jobs Bill over the past years with great interest. Nothing is more important to our 
children's future than a livable climate.  
 
 
Addressing the massive climate impacts of logging and tree plantations on both public and 

private lands is absolutely essential to an effective climate agenda 

. 
 
 
The amendments ( 
Folding the Timber Industry into Oregon’s Climate Agenda Proposed amendments to SB 1070 

)  
proposed by John Talberth of the Center for a Sustainable Economy are logical, timely 
and very much needed to provide clean good jobs in Oregon rural areas. 
 

Most sincerely, 
Emily Herbert 
2120 NE Halsey #29  
Portland, OR 97232 
 
Our lives begin to end the day we become silent about things that matter.   Martin Luther King Jr. 
 

 



Confedetat ed T úb es oJ the

Umatilla Indian Reservation

Board of Trustees

46411 T'lrl;rlr;.e lVay . p"tt¿t"ton, OR 97801

www.ctuir.otg' email: info@ctuir.org
Phore 547-276-3165 . Fax: 54I-276-3095

December 7,2017

Senator Michael Dembrow
900 Court St. NE, S-407
Salem, Oregon 97301

Representative Ken Helm
900 Court St. NE, H-490
Salem, Oregon 97301

Dear Senator Dembrow and Representative Helm

The Confederated Tribes of the Umatilla Indian Reservation (CTUIR) appreciates your effort on the
SB 1070 Cap and Invest initiative. The CTUIR is deeply concerned about climate change and we
have undertaken numerous projects to minimize our carbon emissions including solar, wind and bio-
fuel.

We understand it is late in the process, however we would like to ensure that the legislation specifi-
cally identifies tribes as participants in the certain aspects of the bill's implementat¡on, rather than re-
lying upon an uncertain regulatory process to address tribal participation. Further, we hope to be-
come more involved in the legislative hearings, drafting and passage of any bill intended to address
climate change, an issue that is dramatically affecting us all.

The CTUIR has extensive experience in implementing legislation that was not specifically contem-
plated to include tribal governments. We have discovered in other legislative and regulatory pro-
cesses that if tribes are not specifically acknowledged in legislation as parties, ensur¡ng tribal inclu-
sion in regulations is extremely difficult if not impossible. The proposed legislation, SB 1070, only
mentions tribes once and only in reference to parties to be consulted in the development of regula-
tions. The CTUIR would like tribes to be expressly included in Sections 9(12) and 16(2)(c).

Further, Section 16 identifies the components of the Climate lnvestment Grant Program. Section
16(6) identifies specific elements of the grant program. Specific language in Section 16(6) to call out
tribes as potential recipients of grants would go a long way to avoid any uncertainty as to whether
tribes are eligible to receive those grants. Language such as a new subsection 16(6Xd) could be
added to the indicate that grants may be awarded to tribal governments, associations or programs.
We feel this has the potentialto avoid significant confusion and argument during implementation of
the law.

As noted, we look forward to working closely with you, other legislators, state agencies and all other
parties in developing this legislation and seeing it through to implementation. We recognize the final
bill may be very different but request that the concepts outlined above be adopted in the appropriate
sections. Climate Change threatens all nations and must be addressed immediately.

Regoectfully,

,4*ß*JL
Gary€urke, Chairman
Board of Trustees

TreatyJune 9, 1855 - Cayuse, Umatilla and Walla Walla Tribes



Ostephe Charles  

Lewis & Clark Montessori Charter School 

Macocharles@lcmcs.org 

 

December 11, 2017 

Representative Ken Helm 

rep.kenhelm@state.or.us 

Dear Senator Lee beyer, 

        As a proud Oregon citizen, I am pleased to provide you with an opinion 
on the bill that you are working hard on. Although this bill has not officially 
been presented, I agree it is in the best interest of all Oregonians.  The Clean 
Energy Jobs Bill (Bill 1070), which is currently being discussed, has the goal of 
providing jobs relating  to clean energy.  I think that people on Native 
American reservations should benefit from this too, and that your committee 
needs to pay special attention to their voices when drafting it. 

          If you didn't know, Oregon is one of the leading states in clean energy. 
By approving the clean energy jobs bill, there would be many new and 
sustainable jobs that could open up. I think that it’s important to consider all 
populations in Oregon, and how especially the underrepresented can benefit 
from it. According to the US department of indian affairs,” ​Many Indian 
reservations are well positioned to provide access to a stable source of 
competitively priced energy. For example, of the 326 American Indian 
reservations, more than 150 have the resource capacity needed to sustain a 1 
to 25 megawatt renewable and/or natural gas power generation facility.”A 
great way to create secondary jobs and proceed to circulate money locally is 
by utilizing the power generated from renewable resources for new industries 
on reservations. 

          By doing this you open up many different clean energy ways you could 
go by such as wind turbines and water energy. Which are both very easy and 
plentiful in the use of making energy. It is very important to consider all 
populations of people in Oregon, and I was glad to know that you have a work 
group partly dedicated to the fair representation of Native Americans. 

       Thank you for your time and thank you for hearing my opinions. I really 
appreciate what you and your coworkers are doing.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

mailto:rep.kenhelm@state.or.us


 

 

Ostephe Charles 



 

 

December 11, 2017 
 
Rep. Ken Helm, Chair, Work Group on Agriculture, Forests, Fisheries, Rural 
Communities, Tribes, members of the Work Group & Sen. Michael Dembrow 
(sent via email) 
 
Re: Geos Institute comments on SB 1070  
 
Thank you for your leadership on SB 1070. As a forest scientist and member of 
the Oregon Global Warming Commission’s Task Force on Forest Carbon, I 
would like to comment on SB 1070 to bolster the scientific underpinnings of the 
bill that, if adopted, would make Oregon a leader in addressing climate change.  
 
While the views herein are my own, the draft findings of the Task Force show 
that with improvements to forestry, Oregon can become a national leader in 
meeting emissions reduction targets as summarized: 
 

§ Using forest inventory data from the Pacific Northwest Research 
 Station and forest carbon modeling, annual emissions from industrial 
 forestry represent ~ 38% of Oregon’s total emissions (~24 million 
 metric tonnes CO2e/year), the largest single emissions source of all 
 reporting sectors in the state. This estimate builds on a 2015 report  
 submitted to the governor by the Center for Sustainable Economy and 
 Geos Institute1. 

§ Natural mortality and logging are the main emissions from forests with 
 most mortality on a portion of federal lands (e.g., West Cascades).  

§ Although smoke plumes produced by large wildfires are impressive, 
 wildfires overall are not a major long-lived (100 yr+ in the atmosphere 
 vs. black carbon emissions with only 2 week shelf life) emissions 
 source, representing ~5% of total emissions (some years <1%2). Fire-
 related emissions also decreased between 2001-05 vs. 2011-14 (two time 
 periods for which we have data) but were highest on private lands. This 
 is likely due to plantations that burn more intensely due to packing of s
 mall trees and accumulating logging slash over industrial landscapes3.  

§ Surviving and dead trees should not be logged after fire, as they 

                                                        
1http://www.forestlegacies.org/press-room/1265-oregon-forestry-is-clearcutting-our-climate-future 
2Hicke, J.A., et al. 2013. Carbon stocks of trees killed by bark beetles and wildfire in the western United States. 
Environ. Res. Lett. 8, 035032, doi:10.1088/1748-9326/8/3/035032. 
3Odion, D.C., et al. 2004. Fire severity patterns and forest management in the Klamath National Forest, northwest 
California, USA.  Conservation Biology 18:927-936.  Bradley, C.M., et al. 2016. Does increased forest protection 
correspond to higher fire severity in frequent-fire forests of the western United States? Ecosphere 7:1-13. 
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 continue to store carbon, emissions from logging would increase, and they serve 
critically important ecosystem functions. The largest percentage of long-lived emissions 
released into the atmosphere due to fire consistently comes from high fire severity 
hotspots in the forest litter and duff, not the standing dead or downed logs. 

§ Oregon’s older coastal forests are among the most carbon dense ecosystems on the 
planet4. Older forests store 3-7 times more carbon than plantations5.  

§ Although sequestration is currently outpacing emissions from logging (due presumably to 
sustained yield forestry), gross forests carbon growth rates have been slowing down on 
private non-industrial forests, federal, and state forests.  

§ The Northwest Forest Plan shifted federal forests from an emissions source in the 1980s 
to a large carbon sink today6. Reduced logging levels on federal lands have accumulated 
carbon stored in mature forests and are now a climate asset for the state.  

 
In closing, adding industrial forestry to the cap and invest framework of SB 1070 is essential. SB 
1070 could be improved by encouraging landowners to adopt forestry practices that: (1) extend 
timber harvest rotations at least 50 years (net increase in carbon is ~15%7); and (2) protect older 
forests as sinks. Supporting forest conservation measures of the Northwest Forest Plan would 
optimize the federal lands sink. Current state logging practices emit forest carbon that took 
decades to centuries to accumulate (i.e., slow in). Logging returns carbon to the atmosphere 
quickly through slash, transport and manufacture of wood products, and soil carbon losses (i.e., 
fast out; Dr. Bev Law, Oregon State University). Allowing forests to accumulate carbon would 
have an immediate positive effect on carbon stored in vegetation and soils, atmospheric CO2 
absorption, clean water, and biodiversity that are increasingly important in a changing climate8.  
Thus, Oregon has a unique opportunity to adopt climate-saving practices that play a vital role in 
mitigating and preparing for climate change.  
 
Sincerely,  

  
Dominick A. DellaSala, Ph. D. 
Chief Scientist 
Member of Oregon’s Global Warming Commissions Task Force on Carbon 

                                                        
4Krankina, O., et al. 2014. High biomass forests of the Pacific Northwest: who manages them and how much is 
protected? Environmental Management. 54:112-121. 
5Law, et al.  2001. Carbon storage and fluxes in ponderosa pine forests at different developmental stages.  Global 
Change Biology 7:755-777.  Hudiburg, T., et al.  2009. Carbon dynamics of Oregon and Northern California forests 
and potential land-based carbon storage. Ecological Applications 19:163-180. 
6Krankina, O.N., et al.  2012. Carbon balance on federal forest lands of western Oregon and Washington.  Forest 
Ecology and Management 286:171-182. 
7Hudiburg, T., et al.  2009. Ibid. 
8Brandt, P., et al. 2014. Multifunctionality and biodiversity: Ecosystem services in temperate rainforests of the 
Pacific Northwest, USA. Biological Conservation 169: 362–371. 
 



Jessica Gunther 
macjgunther@lcmcs.org 

Lewis and Clark Montessori Charter School 
Representative Ken Helm 
Work Group on Agriculture, Forests, Fisheries, Rural Communities, and Tribal Issues 
rep.Kenhelm@state.or.us 

 

 

Dear Members of the Oregon Legislature,  
 My name is Jessica Gunther, and I’m a 7th grader at Lewis and Clark 
Montessori School. I was wondering if you could possibly add something in the 
Clean Energy Jobs Bill, to benefit my home: Oregon.  
 The impact of climate change on Oregon’s rivers and lakes are affecting us 
in many ways. For one, the Salmon in the Columbia River are declining drastically 
due to stress in the water. According to the Third Oregon Climate Assessment 
Report, “Stream temperatures that are lethal to fish (generally greater than 68°F, 
although this varies among populations) can occur with declining snowpack and 
warmer summers.” To help this problem, I would ask that maybe you build more 
salmon hatcheries; this would protect the population of the fish that the Pacific 
Northwest treasures.  
 I hope that you keep my proposal in mind, and maybe put it as an addition 
to the bill. Thank you so much for your time, and I wish you the best of luck. 
Sincerely,  
Jessica Gunther 

 

mailto:macjgunther@lcmcs.org
mailto:rep.Kenhelm@state.or.us
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http://www.thesolarfoundation.org/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/National-Solar-Jobs-Census-2016-Appendix-A.pdf
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Diane Henkels, Henkels Law LLC, Committee Co-Chair, Constituent of Rob Nosse
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